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November 17, 2016 
 
David Sud 
Moorefield Properties Ltd.  
2 Farr Avenue 
Sharon, Ontario 
L0G 1V0 
 
Re: Review of Hydrogeological Assessment and Water Balance 

154 and 164 Cemetery Road, Township of Uxbridge 
Project No. P16-11144-91 

Dear Mr. Sud: 

We are pleased to provide the results of our review of the existing hydrogeological 
report and stormwater management report for the above-noted development.  
Relevant reports provided to WSP for review include:  

Æ Hydrogeological Investigation – Cemetery Road Uxbridge Proposed 
Development, submitted by Norbert M. Wornes, M.Sc., P.Geo, 
Hydrogeologist (February 2009); 

Æ Draft version of the Functional Servicing and Stormwater Management 
report, prepared by Cole Engineering Group Ltd. (October 2016); and 

Æ ORMCP Natural Heritage Evaluation – 164 Cemetery Road, Township of 
Uxbridge, submitted by Beacon Environmental (February 2009). 

The Hydrogeological and Natural Heritage reports that were provided were prepared 
in relation to a previous development application for a building complex consisting of 
240 retirement units and commercial space, as well as associated parking lot area.  
The draft stormwater management report was prepared for the current proposed draft 
plan application which includes total of fifty six (56) townhouse lots on the north 
parcel of the property and a three-story apartment building on the south parcel of the 
site.  The subject property area between the two applications are generally the same, 
with the exception of some additional land extending to the north along Cemetery 
Road being included in the current application.   

The Hydrogeological report presents a detailed characterization of the existing 
hydrogeological conditions at the site and the surrounding area, including 
descriptions of the main hydrogeological functions for the site as it relates to the 
groundwater recharge and seasonal groundwater discharge.  Current LSRCA 
requirements for hydrogeological studies have been partially addressed in this report.  
These LSRCA requirements have changed since this report was prepared.  WSP has 
prepared a work plan to supplement the previous hydrogeological investigations to 
ensure that a water balance is prepared in accordance with LUP-12 of the South 
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Georgian Bay Lake Simcoe Protection Plan in a WHPA-Q2 Zone.  A detailed pre-
development to post-development water balance study will be carried out to update 
the previous assessment in accordance with the revised site plans, which will 
quantify changes to the hydrogeological function of site features, particularly the 
wetland tributary. 

This study may be completed following the initial draft plan application, as the water 
balance study must be based on the final site plan and be consistent with the 
detailed stormwater management plan. 

Although the details are not necessarily required until the detailed design stage, in 
order to support the draft plan application Beacon Environmental has identified the 
need to quantify and confirm that pre-development run-off directed towards the site 
wetland will be maintained and will not be increased under post-development 
conditions. 

Cole Engineering’s Functional Servicing report includes an assessment of target 
peak flows which were based on existing site flows.  The preliminary design for 
stormwater management was prepared with the intention of matching pre- and post- 
infiltration and overland flows as closely as possible through controlled flow 
methodologies, such as the use of orifice controls and infiltration chambers at both 
the north and south parcels of the development.  Cole Engineering has proposed the 
use of over-controls at the northern parcel of land in order to compensate for a slight 
increase in flow rates from the southern parcel to ensure that overall release rate 
targets towards the wetland are met and maintained.  They have also indicated that 
every effort will be made to match post-development infiltration volumes to the pre-
development levels on an annual basis, using infiltration storage tanks that will be 
sized accordingly.   

The detailed hydrogeological water balance revision will be completed in sufficient 
detail to provide a revised site infiltration target, as well as to provide targets for 
matching pre-development overland run-off directed towards the wetland pre- and 
post-development in Cole Engineering’s detailed stormwater management design.  
Engineered site design will be modified accordingly to ensure that targets are met in 
accordance with LUP-12 of the South Georgian Bay Lake Simcoe Source Protection 
Plan in a WHPA-Q2 Zone and other relevant policies.  It is expected that this water 
balance work will be included as a Condition of draft plan approval.   

Based on our review of the existing hydrogeological investigations report, meeting 
water balance targets is not expected to be a concern for the proposed development.  
Existing soil and groundwater conditions, as well as proposed site layout, allow for 
additional infiltration opportunities, such as infiltration trenches in rear yards, which 
may be implemented if required to meet the targets.  Post-development run-off from 
the site is expected to exceed pre-development flows, however run-off will be 
detained by the proposed orifice controls and released to the wetland over time to 
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match pre-development targets as closely as possible, therefore negative impacts to 
the wetland are not expected.  Excess run-off volumes can be discharged 
downstream at the culvert under Cemetery Road and thereby bypass the wetland, as 
needed.  Flow release targets and site infiltration targets will be revisited at the 
detailed engineering drainage design stage to ensure that specific targets are met. 

We trust that this review will meet your current needs and those of Beacon 
Environmental.  Please contact us if you have any questions or concerns. 

Yours truly, 
WSP Canada Inc.  Reviewed by, 
 
 
 
 
Sarah Dignard, P.Eng. Lloyd Lemon, M.Sc., P.Geo. 
Project Engineer Senior Project Geoscientist 
 
SJD:nah 






































































































































































































































